Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rupees uniess otherwise stated

Particular As at As at
Note No 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES |
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 14 1,006,030,680 1,006,030,680
(b) Convertible non-participating preference share capital - -
(c) Other equity 15 71,703,079 18,738,334
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,077,733,759 1,024,769,014
Non-controlling interests 15.5 (14,300,291) 9,767,734
Total Equity 1,063,433,468 1,034,536,748
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabiities
(i) Borrowings 16 480,789,704 503,308,751
(i) Lease Liabilities 52 336,960,106 339,078,286
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 1,508,586 1,759,586
(b) Provisions 18 16,464,797 17,831,471
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - -
(d) Other non-current liabilities - -
Total Non - Current Liabilities 835,724,193 861,978,094
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 23,874,696 130,339,962
(i) Trade payables 20 108,656,000 130,989,204
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 89,979,123 148,290,965
(b) Pravisions 18 4,068,991 5,061,551
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
(d) Other current liabilities 21 197,833,303 253,501,580
424,412,113 668,183,962
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified - -
as heid for sale
Total Current Liabilities 424,412,113 668,183,962

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants
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V C Krishnan
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

Particular As at As at
Note No 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 1,046,497,817 1,120,803,573
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 - 343,000
(c) Lease Assels 5.1 311,914,562 330,818,510
(d) Other Intangible assets 6.1 6,906,919 4,129,670
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments = -
(i) Trade receivables 8 - -
(v) Other financial assets 9 19,143,144 18,194,241
(f) Deferred tax assets (Net) 19 67,256,901 87,422,150
(g) Other non-current assets 12 - -
Total Non - Current Assets 1,451,719,343 1,561,711,144
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 42,625,139 54,503,272
(b) Financial assets
(i) Other investments % s
(ii) Trade receivables 8 153,721,588 280,670,030
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 144,508,108 131,391,732
(iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 11.1 152,220,658 11,134,561
(vii) Other financial assets 9 230,811,261 267,085,244
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 117,716,800 220,529,414
(d) Other current assets 12 30,246,877 37,673,407
871,850,431 1,002,987,660
Assets classified as held for sale - -
Total current assets 871,850,431 1,002,987,660
Total assets 2,323,569,774 2,564,698,804

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 004770S/S200025

V C Krishnan
Partner
M No. 022167

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

Director

/K. Va'4;3 ;
Nikunj Vyas
Company Secretary
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Chief Operating Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 18th June, 2021




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement as on March 31, 2021

{(Amounis in INR Rugees unless otherwise slaled)

Particular

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year
Adjustments for;

Finance cos's recognised in profit or loss

Interest Income recognised in profit or loss

Renlal income recognised in profit or loss

Other income recognised in profit or loss

Adjustimenl for OCI

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Frovisions for Doubtful Debls

Actual Bad Debt writien off in profit or loss stalement

Write back of Leasa Liability

Cepreciation and amorfisalion of non-current assels

Net foreign exchange (gainploss

Mavemens in working capital:

Increase in trade and olher receivables
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from customers
(Increase)/decrease in invenlories
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
(Increase)/decreass in other financial assels

Decrease In frade and other payables

- Increasef{decrease) in amounts due to trade payabies
Increase/{decrease) in provisions
(Decrease)increase in olher liabilities
(Decrease)increase in other financial liabilities

Cash generaled from operalions

Income laxes (paid) / refunds

Net cash generaled by operaling activilies
Cash flows from investing aclivilies

Interest received

Rental Income from properlies & operaling Leass

Other Income received

Paymenls for property, planl and equipment

Purchasz of Leased Assels

Payments for CWIP

Proceeds from disposal of properly, plant and equipment

Fayments for inlangible assets

Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activilies

Procesds from issue of equity inslruments of lhe Company

Proceads from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings & others

Paymenl of Lease Liability

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Netincreasef{decreasa) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Effects of exchange rale changes on the balance of cash heid in foreign currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconcilation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalenis
Bank overdrafls

Balances as per stalement of cash flows

In terms of our report attached
For, S.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reqn. No: 004770S5/5200025

V C Krishnan
Partner
M No. 022167

(7‘\ :
lg:.%!salaji Pill
Chiéf Operating Officer

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 18th June, 2021

82,410,725 23,140,023
98,960,423 109,905 523
(18,556 664) (3,307,740)

(6.881,856) (9,353,207)
(161,025) 2,830,891
11,040,362 40,052,964
28,698,322
123,149,091 130,890,297
2,794,430 (1.895,038)
113,104,650 (6,116,408)
11,878,134 (16,931,970)
7,426,530 (18,534,439)
35,325,079 (17,934,123)
(22,333 904) 54,800,321
(2,359,234) 490,483
(55,668,277) (4,750,270)
(58,561,842) (2,891,148)
321,583,722 309,101,565
60,625,784 . (92,391,303)
381,200 506 216,710,282
18,556,654 3,307,740
6,881,856 9,353,207

(23.730,177)

(32,680,266)

(2,517,228) -

- (343.000)

524,695 1,383 929
(6,650,926) (3,200,640)
(6,935,114) (22,179,030)
(22,519,047) {90,788 838)
(2,118,180) (35,214,263)
(9B,969,423) (78,614,834)
(123 AR B50) (204,617 ,935)
260 667,742 (10,086,684)
12,186 331 22,273,015
272,854,073 12,186,331
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
296,728,766 142,526,293
(23,874,696) (130,329 962)
272,854,070 12,186,331

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

Tharanee
nancial Officer

Director

Nikunj Vyas
Company Secretary



Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended Mar 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rupees except for earnings per share information

Note
Particular No. Current Year ended Previous year ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020
| Revenue from Operations 22 1,700,575,487 2,075,089,270
I Other Income 23 18,556,664 1,790,519
il Total Income (I+l1) 1,719,132,151 2,076,879,789
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 502,406,376 663,247,301
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 67,409,717 110,679,844
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade 25 1,873,210 (1,305,978)
Employee benefit expense 26 306,602,659 349,886,257
Finance costs 27 98,969,423 109,905,523
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 123,149,002 130,890,297
Other expenses 29 536,310,950 690,436,522
Total expenses (IV) 1,636,721,426 2,053,739,766
\ Share of profit / (loss) of associates - -
VI  Share of profit / (loss) of joint ventures - =
VIl Profit/(loss) before tax (IlI-IV+V+VI) 82,410,725 23,140,023
VIl Tax expense
(1) Current tax 29.3 33,120,305 36,857,898
(1.1) MAT Credit Entitlement 29.3 (8,630,558) (36,857,898)
(2) Deferred tax 29.3 28,862,332 50,935,749
53,352,079 50,935,749
IX  Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIIl) 29,058,646 (27,795,726)
X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations before tax - =
Xl Tax Expense of discontinued operations = =
Xl Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) - -
Xl Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XI1) 29,058,646 (27,795,726)
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) (228,450) 2,830,891
(b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income - -
(c) Others (specify nature) - =
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associates and joint ventures, to the - -
extent not to be reclassified to profit or loss
(228,450) 2,830,891
A (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (68,525) 824,033
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations - -
(b) Debt instruments through other comprehensive income = =
(c)Others (specify nature) - -
(d) Share of other comprehensive income in associates and joint ventures, to the - -
extent that may be reclassified to profit or loss
B (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = -
XIV  Other comprehensive income for the period (A (i-il)+B(i-ii)) (161,925) 2,006,858
XV Total comprehensive income for the period 28,896,721 (25,788,868)

(XI+XIV)




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended Mar 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rupees except for earnings per share information

Note
Particular No.  Current Year ended Previous year ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 53,091,230 16,450,125
Non controlling interests (24,032,585) (44,245,850)
29,058,645 (27,795,724)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company (126,485) 2,008,492
Non controlling interests (35,440) 366
(161,925) 2,006,858
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 52,964,745 18,456,617
Non controlling interests (24,068,025) (44,245,484)
28,896,720 (25,788,866)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 31
Basic (in Rs.) 0.53 0.16
Diluted (in Rs.) 0.53 0.16

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, 8.Viswanathan LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No: 0047705/S200025

V C Krishnan
Partner
M No. 022167

2 A

r R Balaji Pil a[
Chief Operating Officer

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 18th June, 2021

Dee| S. Tharanee
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director Director

WKV ak.

Nikunj Vyas
Company Secretary




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity as on March 31, 2021
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Amount
Balance at March 31, 2019 1,006,030,680
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2020 1,006,030,680
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2021 1,006,030,680
b. Other Equity
Securities Ind AS Retained Other  Sub -total
Particular premium  Transition earnings Comprehensiv carried
reserve Reserve elncome  forward
Balance at 1st April, 2019 444 033,295 18,411,817 (458,945,263) 5,211,389 8,711,238
Profit for the year - - 16,450,125 - 16,450,125
Add: Impact on Tranistion to Ind AS 116 (net of NCI) (8,429,521) - (8,429,521)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
income tax - - - 2,006,492 2,006,492
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 8,020,604 2,006,492 10,027,096
Balance at March 31, 2020 444,033,295 18,411,817 (450,924,659) 7,217,881 18,738,334
Profit for the year - - 53,091,230 - 53,091,230
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
income tax - - (126,485) (126,485)
Add: Impact on Tranistion to Ind AS 116 (net of NCI) - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 53,091,230 (126,485) 52 964,745
Balance at March 31, 2021 444,033,295 18,411,817 (397,833,429) 7,091,396 71,703,079

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated
financial statements




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1 General Information
Apollo Hospitals International Limited (AHIL), Ahmedabad is focuses on centers of excellence like Cardiac Sciences, Neuro Sciences,
Orthopedics, Cancer, Emergency Medicine and Solid Organ Transplants besides the complete range of more than 35 allied medical disciplines
under the same roof. AHIL is subsidary of Apollo Hospilals Enlerprise Limited (the Compmany') which is a public Company incorporated in
India.

2 Application of new and revised Ind ASs
The company has applied all the Ind ASs nolified by the MCA. There are no Ind AS that have not been applied by the company.

3 Significant accounting policies

3.1 Statement of compliance .
The Consolidaled financial statemenls have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs nolified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

3.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The Consolidated financial stalements have been prepared on the hislorical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Hislorical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideralion given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes inlo account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis leasing transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value
inuse in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are calegorised inlo Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measuremenls are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusled) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
dale,

Level 2 inputs are inputs, olher than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.3 Investments in associates and joint ventures

A joint venlure is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contraclually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
reievant aclivities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associales or joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial stalements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment in an associale or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consalidaled balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associale or joini venture. Dislributions received from an associale or a joint venture reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Company's share of losses of an associale or a joint venture exceeds the Company's interest in that assaciale or joint
venlure (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Company discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Company has
incurred legal or construclive obligations or made payments on behalf of the assaciate or joint venlure.

An investment in an associale or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associale or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venlure, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, afler reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

After application of the equity melhod of accounting, the Company determines whether there any is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net investment in an associate or a joint venlure and that event (or
evenls) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such an
abjective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Company's investment in an associale
or a joint venlure,

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36
Impairment of Assels as a single assel by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cosls of disposal) with
its carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss

@ is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the exlent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases,




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Company disconlinues the use of the equity method from the dale when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Company retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
relained interest is a financial asset, the Company measures the retained inlerest at fair value at that dale and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venlure at
the date the equity method was disconlinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in
the associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Company accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the relaled assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Company reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Company conlinues to use the equity method when an investment in an associale becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Company reduces its ownership inlerest in an associale or a joint venture but the Company continues to use the equity method, the
Company reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
refaling to that reduclion in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a Company enlity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Company, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associale or joint venture are recognised in the Company's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Company.

3.4 Investment in Subsidiary
Investment in subsidiary are measured at cost less impairment if any.

3.5 Revenue recognition
3.5.1 Rendering of services
Healthcare Services ;
Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Services include charges for accommaodation,
thealre, medical professional services, equipment, radiology, laboralory and pharmaceutical goods used. Revenue is recorded and recognised
during the period in which the hospital service is provided, based upon the estimated amounts due from patients and/or medical funding
entities. Unbilled revenue Is recorded for the service where the patients are not discharged and invoice is not raised for the service.

The company earns revenue primarily from medical services.

The services rendered by the entity is in single geographical location with one type of service, mainly rendering medical services with a single
type of customer who is norimally referred to as a patient with defined contract duration, subject to severe exigencies unknown at the time of
admission of the patient and involves only one type of sales channel which is hospital services directly to the patient.

the company has adopted output method which recognize revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer on the
basis of goods or services transferred to date, relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract. The service revenues
are presented net of related doctor fees in cases where the company is not the primary obligor and does not have the pricing latitude.

3.5.2 Sale of Goods
Pharmacy Sales are recognised when the risk and reward of ownership is passed to the customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideralion received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government. Revenue is reduced for rebates and loyalty points granted upon purchase and are staled net of relurns and
discounts wherever applicable

3.5.3 Dividend and interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
inlerest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that assel's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.5.4 Rental income
The Company's policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 3.5.5 below.

3.5.5 Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operaling leases.

The Company as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases.

Finance lease income is allocaled to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operaling leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflalionary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred in negoliating and arranging an operating lease

ﬂ are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
v

oreign currencles
reparing the financial statements of each individual Company enlity, transactions in currencies other than the enlity’s functional currency

Piot No. 1A,

ign currencies) are recognised at the rales of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transaclions. At the end of each reporting period,
G“:;ﬁgif;a‘g‘:ﬁ 2lary items denominaled in foreign currencies are retranslaled at the rales prevailing at that dale. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
. are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rales prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-



Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.8.

-

3.8.2

3.8.3

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

+ exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings reiating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assels when they are regarded as an adjusiment to inlerest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

+ exchange differences on monelary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which setliement is neither planned nor likely to
occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operalion), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reciassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Borrowings and Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income slatement over the period of
the borrowings using the effeclive inlerest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer setllement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisilion, conslruction or production of qualifying assets, which are assels that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assels are
substantially ready for their intended use or saie.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capilalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a syslemalic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the
related cosls for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company
should purchase, conslruct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated balance sheet and
transferred to profit or loss on a syslematic and ralional basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or lesses aiready incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-markel rate of inlerest is treated as a government grant, measured as the difference between
proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the assat ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (exciuding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is refiected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net inlerest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are calegorised as follows:

+ service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and seftiements);
* net interest expense or income; and
+ remeasurement

The Company presents the firsl two components of defined benefit costs in profit or less in the line item 'Employee benefits expense'.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service cosls.

The retirement benefit obligalion recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculalion is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the eariier of when the enlity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and
when the enlity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefils accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the
relaled service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefils expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefils are measured at the present value of the eslimated future cash outflows
expecled to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans

Discrelionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether
the conlributions are linked to service, as follows:

- If the contributions are not linked to services (e.g. conlributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from losses on plan assels or from
actuarial losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset).

- If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. For the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of years of
service, the Company reduces service cost by allributing the contributions to periods of service using the attribution method required by Ind AS
19.70 for the gross benefits. For the amount of conlribution that is independent of the number of years of service, the Company reduces
service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered / reduces service cost by attributing conltributions to the employees’ periods
f service in accordance with Ind AS 19.70.

xation
/ome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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3.9.1 Current tax

the reparting period.

3.9.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounls of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
slalements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computalion of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabililies are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax aszets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probabie that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interesls in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to conlrol the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future, Deferred tax asseis arising from deduclible temporary differences associated
with such investments ang inlerests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient {axable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax liabiiities and assels are measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is seltled or the
assel realised, based on tax rales (and tax laws) that have been enacted or subs_!antive!y enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recaver or sellie the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.9.3 Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the ¢
respeclively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

na reasonable certainty that ownership will be ablained by the end of the lease term, assels are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

Buildings (Freehold) 60 years
Plant and Medical Equipment 7-13 years
Surgical Instruments 3 years
Office Equipment - Others 5 years
Office Equipment - Computers 3 years
Vehicles B years

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has continued with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1,
\ 2015 (transition dale) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.
Accordingly, certain pre-operalive cosis have been charged off upon transition.

Piot No. /A,

Bhat GIDC Eslate.
Gandhinagar-332422
3 Gujarat
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3.10.1 Intangible assets

3.10.2 Intangible assets acquired consolidatedly
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired consolidatedly are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their eslimaled useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assels with indefinite useful lives that are acquired consolidatedly are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

3.10.3 Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible assel is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefils are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an inlangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assel, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.10.4 Useful lives of intangible assets
Estimaled useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
In the case of special software developed, the company has a policy of defining capitalization based on period of rests. The company is
adopling a policy to amortize such capitalizalion in three years.

[Computer Software [3 years ]

3.10.5 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assels to determine whether there
is any indication that those assels have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
gslimaled in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company eslimales the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or olherwise they
are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generaling unils for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identlified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indicalion that the assel may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cosls of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the eslimated future cash
flows are discounled to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the eslimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generaling unit) is estimaled to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generaling unit) is reduced to its recoverable amaunt. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assat (or a cash-generaling unit) is increased to the revised
eslimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generaling unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.1 Inventories
The inventories of all medicines, medicare items traded and dealt with by the Company are valued at cost. In the absence of any further
eslimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale, the Net Raalisable Value is not applicable. Cost of these
invenlories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for
GST wherever applicable, applying the FIFO melhod.

Stock of provisions, slores (including lab materials and olher consumables), slalioneries and housekeeping items are staled at cost. The net
realisable value is not applicable in the absence of any further modificalion/alteration before being consumed in-house only. Cost of these
invenlories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present lacation, after adjusting for
GST wherever applicable applying FIFO method.

Linen, crockery and cutlery are valued at cost and written off applying FIFO method. The net realisable value is not applicable in the absence
of any further modificalion/alteration before being consumed in-house, Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other
cosls incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location.

Imported invenlaries are accounted for at the applicable exchange rales prevailing on the date of transaction,

3.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or conslruclive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to seltle the obligalion, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideralion required to selile the present obligalion at the end of the
reporling period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
eslimated fo settle the present obligation, its carrying amaunt is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material),
When some or all of the economic benefits required to seltle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an assatif it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured refiably.

3.12.1 Other Provisiens :
: mu%‘ third-party payments for malpractice claims) which are not covered by insurance and olher costs for legal claims are
d %:ssﬂd on legal opinions and management judgment.
Bhat GIDC Estate,
Gandhinagar-282478
Gujarat
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3.13

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company enlity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

I liabilities (olher than financial assels and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriale, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assels or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss,

3.14 Financial assets

3.14.1

3.14.2

3.14.3

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on fair value basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
markelplace,

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their enlirely at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assats

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt instruments that are
designaled as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recagnition):

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
For the impairment palicy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer Note 3.225
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for

principal amount oulstanding.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOG! debt instrumenls. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculaling the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocaling interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rale is the rate that exactly discounls eslimated future cash receipts (including all fees and poinls paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effeclive interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognisad in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assels measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial
guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighled average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expecls to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effeclive interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assels). The Company eslimales cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar oplions) through the expected life of that financial instrument,

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifelime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the less allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expecied credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expecled credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shorlfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicled over
the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifelime expecled credit loss model in the previous period, but determines
atthe end of a reporting period that the credit risk has nol increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as
Compared to the previous period, the Company again measuras the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expecied life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default oceurring on the financial instrument as at the reporling
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the dale of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicalive of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition.

For trade receivables or any conlractual right to receive cash or another financial assat that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifelime expected credit losses.
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Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitled under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision malrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI
except that the loss allowance is recognised in olher comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet,

3.14.4 Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another parly. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its relained
interest in the asset and an ocialed liability for amounls it may have to pay. If the Company relains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial assat, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrawing for the proceeds recejved.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its enlirely, the difference between the assel's carrying amount and the sum of the consideralion
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognisad in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial assel other than in its enlirety (e.g. when the Company relains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
assel), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part
no lenger recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in olher comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or less if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial assel. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in olher comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relalive fair values of those parts.

3.15 Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of financial assels denominated in a foreign currency is delermined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the
end of each reporting period.

recognised in olher comprehensive income.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at
amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profil or loss and other changes in the fair value of
FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.

3.16 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

3.16.1 Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the conltractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

3.16.3 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effeclive interest method or at FVTPL.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement
approach applies, financial guaraniee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-
markel interest rale are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

3.16.4 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designaled as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabiiities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are delermined based on the
effective interest method. Inlerest &xpense that is not capilalised as part of cosls of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item,

The effective interast method is a method of calculating the amortisad cost of a financial liability and of allocaling interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective nieresl rate is the rate that exaclly discounts esfimated future cash payments (including all fees and poinlts paid
or received that form an integral part of the effeclive inlerest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liabllity, or (where appropriate) a shorier period, to the nel carrying amount on initial recognition.

-16.5 Foreign exchange gains and losses
For finangi igs that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the
and losses are delermined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in 'Other income’,
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The fair value of financial liabilities denominaled in a foreign currency is delermined in that foreign currency and translaled at the spot rate at
the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.16.6 Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An
_exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognilion of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not aliributable to the financial difficulty of the deblor) is accounted for as an exlinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognisad in profit or loss.

3.17. Ind AS 116 Leases:
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corparale Affairs has nolified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the exisling leases Standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and refated Inlerpretalions. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both parties to a conltract i.e., the lesses and the lessor. Ind AS 118 infroduices a single lessee accounting model and requires a
lessee to recognize assels and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Currently, operaling lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessar accounling requirements in Ind AS 17.
Until the 31-Mar-2019 financial year-end, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as either finance or operaling leases.
Payments made under operaling leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the statement of comprehensive
incame on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
From April 1, 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the company . Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the assel's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments

“fixed paymentls (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incenlives receivable

*variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate

ramounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guaraniess

*the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exarcise that option, and
*payments of penalfies for terminaling the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease paymentls are discounted using the interest rale implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rale that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assels are measured at cost comprising the following:

*the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

*any lease payments made at or before the commencement dale less any lease incentives received
any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.

Paymenls associaled with short-term leases and leases of low-value assels are recognised on a slraight-line basis as an expense in the
stalement of comprehensive income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-
equipment and small items of office furniture.

The company has adopled Ind AS 116 retraspectively from April 1, 2019 but has not restated comparalives for the year-ended March 31, 2019,
as permilled under the specific transitional provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing
rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on April 1, 2019.

3.18. Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Minislry of Corporale Affairs ("MCA") nolifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would
have been applicable from April 1, 2020.

4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounling policies, which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumplions about the carrying amounls of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimales and associaled assumplions are based on hislorical experience and other faclors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these eslimates.

The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the eslimale is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods,

4.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumplions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that ignificant risk of causing a malerial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiiities within the next financial year.

Plat No. 1iA,
Bhat GIDC Estate,
@andhinagar 382428
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.

L2}

4.7

4.8

4.9

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described at 3.16 above, the Company reviews the eslimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. During the current year, the directors determined that the useful lives of cerain items of equipment should be shortened, due to
developments in technology.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company’s assels and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporling purposes. The business acquisitions made by
the company are also accounted at fair values. The board of directors of the Company has set up a valuation committee, which is headed up
by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriale valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
findings to the board of directors of the Company every year to expiain the cause of fluctualions in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Employee Benefits

The cosl of defined benefit plans are delermined using actuarial valualions. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rales, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term
nature of these plans, such eslimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Further details are given in note 32

Litigations
The amount recognised as a provision shall be the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation arising at the
reporting period

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from fees charged for inpalient and outpalient hospital/clincial services rendered to insured and corporate palienls are subject to
approvals for the insurance companies and corporates. Accordingly, the Company eslimates the amounts likely to be disallowed by such
companies based on past trends.

Eslimations based on past trends are also required in determining the value of consideralion from customers to be allocaled to award credits
for customers,

Basic Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit or less from the conlinuing operalions atiributable to the parent enlity.

By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted Earnings Per Share:

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
The profit or loss from the continuing operalions attributable to the parent entity.
By the weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential eq

Current and Non Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classificalion.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
Expecied to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle
Expecied to be realised within twelve months afler the reporling period, or
Cash or cash equivaient uniess restricled from being exchanged or usad to sellle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assels are ciassified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
Itis expecled to be settled in normal operating cycle
Itis due to be seltied within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no uncondilional right to defer the sattlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assels and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities.
The operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Plol No. 1/A,
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5.1

5.2

Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rupees unless otherwise stated

Right to Use of Asset As at As at
31-03-21 31-03-20
Carrying amounts of Right to use of Asset:
Land 49,512,316 49,792,048
Buildings 251,155,477 266,367,337
Plant and Machinery 11,246,770 14,659,126
Total 311,914,563 330,818,511
Description of Assets Lsind Buildings PIanF and Total
Machinery
Cost
Balance as at 01 April, 2019 50,071,780 320,051,352 370,123,132
Additions - 3,128,031 17,089,849 20,217,880
Disposals - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 50,071,780 323,179,383 17,089,849 390,341,012
Cost
Balance as at 01 April, 2020 50,071,780 323,179,383 17,089,849 390,341,012
Additions - 2,517,226 - 2,517,226
Disposals (3,922,649) - (3.922,649)
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 50,071,780 321,773,960 17,089,849 388,935,589
Accumulated depreciation as on 01 April, 2019 - 38,655,277 - 38,655,277
Deprecaition 279,732 18,156,769 2,430,723 20,867,224
Dpreciation on deletion - - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 279,732 56,812,046 2,430,723 59,522,501
Accumulated depreciation as on 01 April, 2020 279,732 56,812,046 2,430,723 59,522,501
Deprecaition 279,732 17,729,088 3,412,356 21,421,176
Dpreciation on deletion - (3,922,651) - (3,922,651)
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 559,464 70,618,483 5,843,079 77,021,026
Lease Liability Land Buildings | Plant & Machinery Total
Balance as at 01 April, 2019 - 322,988,941 - 322,988,941
Additions - 2,963,710 17,089,849 20,053,559
Disposals - - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 - 325,952,651 17,089,849 343,042,500
Interest and Lease Rent
Interest - 30,217,040 1,073,649 31,290,689
Lease rent (32,275,980) (2,978,923) (35,254,903)
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 - 323,893,711 15,184,575 339,078,286
Balance as at 01 April, 2020 - 323,893,711 15,184,575 339,078,286
Additicns - 2,617,226 2,517,226
Disposals (21,863) - (21,863)
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 - 326,389,074 15,184,575 341,573,649
se Rent
m’ \ - 30,232,037 3,894,945 34,126,982
& mndhm‘i‘”‘" |~ - (31,722,788) (7,017,741) (38,740,529)
E@h{lcecﬂé'aat y/@arch 2021 - 324,898,323 12,061,779 336,960,102

S




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rupees except for earnings per share information

6 Intangible Assets

6.1 Other intangible Assets

As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
(d) Other Intangible assets 6,906,919 4,129,670
6,906,919 4,129,670
Computer Software Total
Cost
Balance as at 01 April, 2019 19,897,874 19,897,874
Additions from Standalone acquisitions 3,196,171 3,196,171
Additions through business combination ¥ C
Additions from internal developments = =
Disposals or classified as held for sale & =
Others (decribe) N =
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 23,094,045 23,094,045
Balance as at 01 April, 2020 23,094,045 23,094,045
Additions from Standalone acquisitions 6,650,926 6,650,926
Additions through business combination - -
Additions from internal developments = 3
Disposals or classified as held for sale - -
Others (decribe) . u
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 29,744,971 29,744,971
Il. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance as at 01 April, 2019 16,355,550 16,355,550
Amortisation expense for the year 2,509,793 2,599,793
Disposals or classified as held for sale - -
Impairment losses recognised / (Reversed) in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Reversals of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - -
Others [describe] 9,032 9,032
Balance as at 31 March, 2020 18,964,375 18,964,375
Balance as at 01 April, 2020 18,964,375 18,964,375
Amortisation expense for the year 3,873,677 3,873,677
Disposals or classified as held for sale - =
Impairment losses recognised / (Reversed) in Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Reversals of impairment losses recognised in profit or loss - -
Others [describe] - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 22,838,052 22,838,052

Piot No. 174,
hat GIDC Esigte
ndhinager- 382428
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

7 Investments in subsidiaries &associates

7.1 Break-up of investments in subsidiaries & associates

Particular As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Q1Y Amounts* Qrty Amounts*

Quoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments - - - -
Total Aggregate Quoted Investments (A) - - - -
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)

Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pyt Ltd 1,855,000 33,350,000 1,855,000 33,350,000

Add: Share of losses of reserve of Associates (1,855,000) (33,350,000) (1,855,000) (33,350,000)

Total Aggregate Unquoted Investments (B) - - - -

Total Investments Carrying Value (A) + (B) u - = =

Aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments - -

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments in
associates

7.2 The movement in the entity's share of losses of the joint venture , Apollo Amrish Oncology Services Pvt. Ltd.is as follows :

Particular As at 31.03.2021
The Entity's Share of Losses as on 01-04-2020 (92,164,407)
Add / Less : Current Year Share of total Comprehensive 5,651,771

income

The Entity's Share of Losses as on 31-03-2021 (86,512,636)

The Apollo Amrish Oncology Services Private Limited being a Joint Venture of Apollo Hospitals International Limited has a Negative Net-worth
as on 31st March 2021 By adopting the equity method of consoldiation as prescribed by IND AS 28 ,the company has discontinued recognising
its share of further losses as exceeds its interest in the associate. During the current and previous year, associate has started making profits.
In line with Ind AS 28, The company would commence recognising its share of profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of
losses not recognised, therefore share of profits of associate is not recognised.

7.3 Details of material associates
Details of each of the Company's material associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Place of

Incorporation and

Principal Activity . incipal place of

Proportion of ownership interest /
voting
rights held by the Company

business
As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd Healthcare Ahmedabad 50.0% 50.0%
Apollo CVHF Limited Healthcare Ahmedabad 66.7% 66.7%



7.4

Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Summarised financial information of material associates and Subsidary

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Company's material associates is set out below.

The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown in the associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind

ASs adjusted by the Company for equity accounting purposes.

Apollo-Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd
Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Revenue

Profit or loss from continuing operations

Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends received from the associate during the year

Apollo CVHF Limited
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Revenue

Profit or loss from continuing operations

Post-tax profit (loss) from discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends received from the associate during the year

Trade receivables

Trade receivables
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Secured, considered doubtful
Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance)
lowance for disallowances (expected credit loss allowance)

As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
233,783,639 136,899,436
240,747,183 211,330,810
201,836,820 135,591,312
408,619,272 359,867,746
As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
452 164,962 474,447,030
11,687,500 21,762,862
11,687,500 21,762,862
(383,958) 797,311
11,303,542 22,560,173
As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
564,893,621 610,726,747
25,134,622 22,476,148
532,553,213 521,988,310
103,058,759 84,806,878
As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
185,898,831 136,476,253
(72,097,755) (132,737,549)
(72,097,755) (77,734,411)
106,319 1,109
(71,991,436) (132,736,440)
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
- 247,814,966 - 365,787,547
- 705,842 - -
- (81,365,907) (70,465,907)
- (13,433,313) (14,651,610)
- 153,721,588 - 280,670,030

hat GIDC Estate
andhinagar 282428

Gujarat
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

i. Confirmations of balances from Debtors, Creditors are yet to be received in a few cases though the Company has sent letters of confirmation
to them. The balances adopted are as appearing in the books of accounts of the Company.

ii. Sundry Debtors represent the debt outstanding on sale of pharmaceutical products, hospital services and project consultancy fees and is
considerad good. The Company holds no other securities other than the personal security of the debtors.

jii. Advances and deposits represent the advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be realised. The amounts of these advances
and deposits are considered good for which the Company holds no security other than the personal security of the debtors.

Trade receivables

Majority of the Company's transactions are earned in cash or cash equivalents. The trade receivables comprise mainly of receivables from
Insurance Companies, Corporate customers and Government Undertakings. The entity's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables
is low.

The average credit period on sales of services is 30-60 days from the date of the invoice.

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for receivables excluding Group Company and
Tanzania. A direct confirmation is obtained from Tanzania Government confirming the Receivable amount outstanding. The provision matrix
takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based
on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

No single customer represents 10% or more of the company's total revenue during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

Therefore the customer concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base.

Ageing Expected Credit loss (%)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within the credit period e
Less than 6 months past due 0.00% 0.00%
6 months to 12 months past due 12.50% 12.50%
1 to 2 years past due 30.00% 30.00%
2 to 3 years years past due 50.00% 50.00%
>3 years past due 100.00% 100.00%
Year ended Year ended
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Balance at beginning of the year (85,117,517) (44,697,765)
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at
lifetime expected credit losses (8,681,703) (40,418,752)
Balance at end of the year (94,799,220) (85,117,517)
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.
9 Other Financial Assets 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Security deposits 19,143,144 - 18,194,241 -
Operating lease receivable - 8,028,588 - 5,434,656
Prepaid Rent - - - -
Interest receivables - 177,758 - 211,178
Other receivables - 222,604,915 - 261,439,410
19,143,144 230,811,261 18,194,241 267,085,244

** Note : Other receivables represent net receivables from associate pursuant to a joint venture arrangement in providing oncology services vide
agreement no. PB6618 & the dtd. 20th November, 2014, this is disclosed on net basis in compliances to para 42 of IND AS 32; offsetting a

financial assets and a financial liabilitids.




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

10 Inventories

a) Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Medicines
Lab materials & Other Consumables

11 Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
7,075,804 8,949,014

35,549,335 45 554,258
42,625,139 54,503,272

For the purposes of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks. Cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the Consolidated statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the

Consolidated balance sheet as follows:

Cheques, drafts on hand & escrow alc.

Cash on hand

Current Account

Foreign Currency in hand

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet

Cash and bank balances included in a disposal Company held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents as per Consolidated statement of cash flows

11.1 Bank balances other than (note no. 11.1) above

Balances with Banks
Earmarked balances with banks (unpaid dividend)
Earmarked balances with banks (Others)
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money
Other bank balances

12 Other Assets

Prepaid Expenses
Other Advances & Current Assets

13 Current Tax Assets (Net)

TDS Receivable
Advance Tax

Less : Provision for Tax
TOTAL

Piol No. 1A,
Bhat GIDC Eslgte,

.Gﬂﬁdhlr!aga;.w‘aé
Gujerat ;

As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
298,665 5,407,985
1,717,381 1,754,445
142,492,062 124,229,302
144,508,108 131,391,732
144,508,108 131,391,732
As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
13,011,654 11,134,561
139,209,004 a
152,220,658 11,134,561
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
= 14,528,951 & 17,431,702
- 15,717,927 s 20,241,705
- 30,246,877 - 37,673,407
As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
227,583,783 327,350,576

(109,866,983)

(106,821,162)

117,716,800

220,529,414




Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise slated)

14 Equity Share Capital

14.

=

As at As at
31-Mar-21 31 March 2020

Equity share capital

Authorised Share capital :

10,87,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,087,500,000 1,087,500,000
10,87,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Previous

Year as at 31st March, 2020)

11,04,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100- each 110,400,000 110,400,000
11,04,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100/-each (Previous

Year as at 31st March, 2020)

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
10,06,03,068 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 1,006,030,680 1,006,030,680
10,06,03,068 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year) '

1,006,030,680 1,006,030,680

Fully paid equity shares
Number of shares Share capital
(Amount)
Balance at March 31, 2019 100,603,068 1,006,030,680
Shares Issued during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 100,603,068 1,006,030,680
Shares Issued during the period - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 100,603,068 1,006,030,680

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of Rs.10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.
The fair value of shares issued for consulting services was determined by reference to the market rate for similar consulting services.
The shares bought back in the current year were cancelled immedialely.

14.2 Details of shares held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

Particulars Number of shares Share capital

As at March 31, 2020

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominees 30,340,266 303,402,660
Subsidiaries of the holding company

Associates of the holding company

As at March 31, 2021

Apollo Hospilals Enterprise Ltd & its nomineas 30,340,266 303,402,660
Subsidiaries of the holding company

Associales of the holding company

14.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at Mar 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number of % holding of Number of Shares held % holding of
Shares held equity shares equity shares
Fully paid equity shares
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd & its nominees 30,340,266 30% 30,340,266 30%
Apollo Home Healthcare India Ltd & its nominees 19,961,265 20% 19,961,265 20%
IRM Trust & its nominees 50,301,531 50% 50,301,531 50%
15 Other equity
As at As at
Note 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Securilies premium reserve 15.1 444 033,295 444 033,295
Retained earnings 15.2 (397,833,429) (450,924 ,659)
Other Comprehensive Income 16.3 7,091,396 7,217,881
Ind AS Transition Reserve . 18,411,817 18,411,817
71,703,079 18,738,334
16.1 Securities premium reserve As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Balance at beginning of year (Securities premium 444,033,295 444,033,295
Balance at end of year 444,033,295 444,033,295

hial GIDC Betgie
Gandhmaga:-‘}.z:.-';g
Gujarar
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Apollo Hospitals International Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021
(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

15.2 Retained earnings As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Balance at beginning of year (450,924,659) (458,945,263)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 53,091,230 16,450,125
Add: Adjustment towards Securities Premium of non-controlling interest - -
Add: Impact on Transition to Ind AS 116 - (13,373,929)
Add: Adjustment towards non-controlling interest - 4,944 408
Balance at end of year (397,833,4289) (450,924 ,659)
15.3 Other Comprehensive Income As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Balance at beginning of year 7,217,881 5,211,389
Movement in OCI(Net) during the year (126,485) 2,006,492
Balance at end of year 7,091,396 7,217,881
As at As at
15.4 Ind As fransition reserve 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Ind As transition reserve 18,411,817 18,411,817
Balance at end of year 18,411,817 18,411,817
As at As at
15.5 Non-Controlling Interest 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Balance at beginning of year 9,767,734 58,957,625
Profit/(Loss) during the year (24,068,025) (44,245,484)
Add: Adjustment towards Securities Premium of non-controlling interest - (4,944 ,408)
Add: Adjustment towards Transition Reserve - -
Balance at end of year (14,300,291) 9,767,734
16 Borrowings
As at Mar 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Cummulative Redeemabie Preference Shares 157,822,186 - 146,936,015 -
Secured - at amortised cost
(i) Term loans
from banks (Refer note (vi) below) 322,967,518 - 356,372,736 -
(i) Loans repayable on demand - 23,874,696 - . 130,339,962
Total 480,789,704 23,874,696 503,308,751 130,339,962

16.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements
(i) There are 11,04,000/- Redeemable Cumulative Preference shares, each having face value of INR 100 with a coupon of 9%. There has been no change
in the numbers and the holder (Apoilo Hospitals Enterprise Ltd) and these are redeemable in the year 2026. These redeemable preference shares do not
contain any equity component.

(i) The terms of repayment of term loans and other loans are slaled below.

As at March 31, 2021

Particluars Principal Principal Rate of
Qutstanding as Outstanding Terms of repayment Rate of Interest Interest 21
at 31st as at 31st 31 Mar 21 Mar 20
March.2021 March.2020
Axis Bank 39,373,473 - As per the fixed 7.65% -
repayment over 2 Years
Axis Bank 47,563,947 - As per the fixed 7.65% -
repayment over 7 Years
Yes Bank - 127829231 Taken over by Axis bank - 9.95%
and HDFC bank, at the
existing terms &
conditions except lower
rate of interest which
decreased from 9.95% to
7.65.
Yes Bank - 100,177,895 Taken over by Axis bank - 9.95%
and HDFC bank, at the
existing terms &
conditions except lower
rate of inlerest which
decreased from 9.95% to
7.65.
HDFC Bank 30,373,473 - As per the fixed 8.25% -
repayment over 2 Years
HDFC Bank = 47,563,947 - As per the fixed 8.25% =
: TR repayment over 7 Years
HDFC Bank /. = "40\ 26,295,027 72,000,000 As per the fixed 8.35% 9.65%
- ﬁm repayment over 1 Years
/ Yes Bank {Z[ orycipcEsizie. V) 200,818,612 199,736,593
Total 131

Gandhinegar-382428 | X | 409,988,479 499,743,719
Gujare! [ .,
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(i) The Company has availed Two Rupee Term Loans of Rs. 39.37 million and INR 47.56 Mio from Axis Bank Limited; these were taken over from Yes bank
on 07th Nov,2020. Term loan 1 of INR 39.37 million is repayable in four quarterly instaiments of INR 8.29 mio each and one last instaliment of INR 6.21 mio,
commencing from 01st July, 2021 and which is repaid by 1st July,22. Term loan 2 of INR 47.56 million is repayable in total 26 quarterly instalments of out of
which there are 10 instaiiments each of INR 1.26 till 24th July, 2023; 8 installments each of INR 1.89 mio starting from 24th Oct'2023 to 24th July, 2025; 7
instaliments of INR 2.52 mio starting from 24th Oct, 2025 to 24th July, 2027 and the last instailment of INR 2.11 mio on 24th July, 2027. The loans are
secured by first pari passu charge on all present and future movable and immovable fixed assets of the company along with minimum cover of 1.50 times
the value of the outstanding considering movable & immovable asset.

(i) The Company has avaiied Two Rupes Term Loans of Rs. 39.37 million and INR 47.56 Mio from HDFC Bank Limited; these were taken over from Yes
bank on O7th Nov, 2020. Term loan 1 of INR 39.37 million is repayable in four quarterly instaiments of INR 8.29 mio each and one last instaiiment of INR
6.21 mio, commencing from 01st July, 2021 and which is repaid by 1st July,22. Term loan 2 of INR 47.56 million is repayable in total 26 quarterly

instaiments of out of which there are 10 instaliments each of INR 1.26 fill 24th July, 2023; 8 installments each of INR 1.89 mio starting from 24th Oct’2023 to
24th July, 2025; 7 instaliments of INR 2.52 mio starting from 24th Oct, 2025 to 24th July, 2027 and the last instaliment of INR 2.11 mio on 24th July, 2027.
The loans are secured by first pari passu charge on all present and future movable and immovable fixed assets of the company afong with minimum cover of
1.50 times the value of the outstanding considering movable & immovable assef.

(fl) There was an existing term loan of INR 24 mio that has been repaid on 1st June, 2021

(i) Qut of the folal term loans of INR 228.66 mio from Yes Bank, INR 173.87 mio
remaining INR 54.79 mio were paid off afelr the end of the RBI moratorium on 30.
also paid INR 13.33 mio by way of funded interest term loan, which arose due to

17 Other financial liabilities

As at Mar 31, 2021

were equally taken over by Axis and HDFC bank on 07th Nov, 2020. The
09.2020, and before the takeover by the Axis and HDFC, The comapny
the availment of the RBI moratorium during the first wave of the pandemic

As at March 31, 2020

Non Current Current Non Current Current
Non-current
a) Interest accrued - 2,958,161 - 4,919,981
b) Current maturities of long-term debts - 87,020,962 - 143,370,984
c) Security Deposits 1,509,586 - 1,759,586 -
d) Non Current Deferred Rent - - - -
Total 1,509,586 89,979,123 1,759,586 148,290,965
18 Provisions As at Mar 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Employee benefils 16,464,797 4,088,991 17,831,471 5,061,551
Total 16,464,797 4,063,991 17,831,471 5,061,551
19 Deferred tax balances As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Deferred Tax Assets 40,255,844 70,075,160
Deferred Tax Liabilities (106,627,555) (107,651,064)
MAT Credit Entitlement 133,628,612 124 998,054
Total 67,256,901 87,422,150

For the period ended on 31st March, 2021

Particulars / Details of Deferred tax balances

Opening Balance Recognised in
Profit or Loss

Recognised in other
comprehensive income

Closing Balance

Property Plant and Equipment (107,651,084) 1,023,509 - (106,627,555)
Financial assets at Amortized Cost 165,726 32,875 - 198,601
Others Assets 2,743,889 3,420,701 - 6,164,590
Retirement Benefit Plans 8,438,512 (4,246,639) 110,204 4,302,076
Business Loss carried forward under Income Tax 33,726,342 (31,216,199) (43,679) 2,460,464
Frovision for doubtful debts 24,786,221 2,595,663 - 27,381,683
Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost 214,471 (472,241) - (257,769)
Total (37,575,904) (28,862,332) 66,525 (66,371,711)
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit (B) 124,998,054 8,630,558 - 133,628,612
Total (C)= (A+B) 87,422,150 (20,231,774) 66,526 67,256,901

For the period ended on 31st March, 2020

Particulars / Details of Deferred tax balances

Opening Balance Recognised in
Profit or Loss

Recognised in other
comprehensive income

Closing Balance

Property Plant and Equipment (110,021,524) 2,370,459 - (107,651,064)
Financial assets at Amortized Cost 763,366 (597,640) - 165,726
Others Assels 1,337,914 1,405,974 - 2,743,889
Relirement Benefit Plans 6,977,140 2,285,405 (824,033) 8,438,512
Business Loss carried forward under Income Tax 102,444 665 (68,718,322) - 33,726,342
Provision for doubtful debts 13,015,989 11,770,232 - 24,786,221
Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost 350,671 (136,199) - 214,471
Total o 14,868,221 (51,620,092) (824,033) (37,575,904)
/&5‘&4‘}
Minimum Altermale Tax Credit (B) /&7 - Y Q*, 88,140,156 36,857,898 124,998,054
Total (C)= (A+B) TR TN 103,008,376  (14,762,194) (824,033) 87,422,150
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20 Trade Payables 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Trade Payable-MSME 9,599,770 6,595,791
Trade payables - Other than MSME 99,056,230 124,394,113

Cash-setlied share-based paymenls A =
Others [describe] - -

Total 108,658,000 130,989,904

(i) The average credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 30-45 Days 30-45 Days
immediale payments to credit period of days

21 Other current liabilities As at As at
. 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

(a) Revenue received in advance

Deferred revenue arising from government grant 12,370,781 -

(c) Amount due to customers 7,629,504 14,188,265
(e) Statutory Dues 9,755,477 14,654,388
(d) Outstanding & Other Expense Payable 168,077,545 224,658,926
Total 197,833,303 253,501,580
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22 Revenue from Operations

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue for the year from continuing
operations (excluding other income-see note 23)

Particulars

Current Year ended
31/03/2021

Previous year ended
31/03/2020

(a) Revenue from rendering of healthcare services
(b) Revenue from sales at pharmacies

(c) Fees and Collections

(d) Other operating revenues

23 Other Income

a) Interest income

1,569,853,473

1,882,686,049

86,841,639 135,791,595
22,996,925 24,485,502
20,883,450 32,126,125
1,700,575,487 2,075,089,270

Particulars

Current Year ended Previous year ended

31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Interest on Bank Deposits & Others 18,556,664 1,790,519
18,556,664 1,790,519
b) Dividend Income
Dividends from equity investments
All dividends from equity investments designated as at FVTOC]| recognised for both the 0 0
years relate to investments held at the end of each reporting period.
0 0

c) Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly 0 0
attributable to such income)
Finance lease contingent rental income = =
Others (aggregate of immaterial itemns) = )
(a+b+c=d) 18,556,664 1,790,519

24 Cost of materials Consumed

Particulars

Current Year ended Previous year ended

31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Opening stock 45,554,258 29,928,266
Add: Purchases 492,401,452 678,873,293
537,955,710 708,801,559

Less: Closing stock (35,549,334) (45,554,258)
Cost of materials consumed 502,406,376 663,247,301

25 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade - Pharmacy

Particulars
Current Year ended Previous year ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Inventories at the end of the year:
Stock-in-trade (end of the year) 7,075,804 8,949,014
7,075,804 8,949,014
Inventories at the beginning of the year; “
Stock-in-trade (beginning of the year) Bh:"gigg éA 8,949,014 7,643,036
/ g inager-38343s 8,949,014 7,643,036
Net (increase) / decrease / : 1,873,210 (1,305,978)




Apollo Hospitals International Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the period ended Mar 31, 2021

(Amounts in INR Rupees unless otherwise stated)

26 Employee benefits expense

Particulars

Current Year ended Previous year ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020

Salaries and wages 262,515,306 301,528,336
Contribution to provident and other funds 18,555,200 21,561,926
Bonus 6,337,966 7,068,589
Staff weifare expenses 19,194,187 19,727,406
306,602,659 349,886,257

27 Finance costs

Particulars
Current Year ended Previous year ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Continuing operations
(a) Interest costs :-
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (other than those from related parties) 46,354,015 59,364,356
Interest on obligations under finance leases - -
Interest on convertible notes - =
Interest on lease liability 31,490,464 31,296,808
Other interest expense 10,197,962 8,563,317
Total interest expense for financial liabilities not classified as at FYTPL
Less: amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets
88,042,441 99,224,481
(b) Amortized interest cost on redeemable preference shares 10,926,982 10,681,042
(c) Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs - -
(d) Other borrowing costs :-
Unwinding of discount on costs to sell non-current assels classified as held for sale - -
98,969,423 109,905,523
28 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars
Current Year ended Previous year ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment pertaining to continuing operations 97,854,238 107,423,279
Amortisation on right of use asset 21,421,177 20,867,225
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,873,677 2,599,793
Total depreciation and amortisation pertaining to continuing operations 123,149,092 130,890,297
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment pertaining to - -
discontinued operations
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 123,149,092 130,890,297

29 Other expenses

Particulars

Current Year ended Previous year ended

] LS INTEs 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

[
Power and fuel Bh Fol No. 17, 40,901,017 55,185,700
1AL GIDC Eglag |

Water Charges Gandhinagar-3834-4 | 3,345,385 4,108,466
Seray 6,640,575 8,028,655

Rent / =~
Repairs & Maintenance Expesnes

b
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Repairs to Buildings, Machinery & Others
Repairs to Medical Equipments
Repairs to Vehicles
Annual maintainance Charges
Insurance
Retainer fees to Dostors
Outsource Charges
House Keeping £ xpenses
Food & Beverages Expenses
Bio Medical Maintenance
Security Charges
Outsourcing Expenses - IT
Qutsouircing Expenses
Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income
Other operaling & administrative Expenses
Communication & Telephone Expeness
Director Sitting Fees
Advertisement, Publicity & Marketing
Travelling & Conveyance
Legal & Professional Fees
Continuing Medical Education & Hospitality Expenses
Seminar Expenses
Books & Periodicals
Provision for Bad Debts
Bad Debts Written off
Loss on Sale of Asset
Miscellaneous expensas
Net foreign exchange gains/ (losses)

29.1 Payments to auditors
a) For audit
b) For taxation matters & other services
c) For reimbursement of expenses

29.2 Expenditure incurred for corporate socia) responsibility

29.3 Income taxes relating to continuing operations

21,300,437 19,713,587
7,360,013 4,520,545
771,256 1,329,609
18,582,646 16,279,359
2,446,732 3,034,244
172,372,965 246,796,215
46,674,314 50,329,887
30,696,295 42,258,807
8,139,345 9,558,000
16,901,659 19,068,553
4,780,181 4,535,148
12,500,949 10,133,344
5,019,384 5,927,323
17,211,610 10,638,389
2,337,315 3,112,022
826,000 1,084,125
43,838,284 71,800,771
5,826,305 18,872,882
46,875,770 30,125,878
587,396 3,690,449
430,844 1,038,436
112,616 510,585
11,049,362 40,052,964
527,405 297,510
3,268 -
1,254,665 2,425 555
2,794,430 1,896,938
532,108,424 686,353,945
1,006,000 1,162,300
1,006,000 1,162,300
3,196,526 2,920,277

Particulars
Current Year ended Previous year ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Current tax
In respect of the current year (Current tax) 33,120,305 36,857,898
In respect of prior years - -
Others - -
33,120,305 36,857,898
Net Current tax 33,120,305 36,857,898
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (Deferred tax) 28,862,332 50,935,749
In respect of prior years - -
Less : MAT Credit Entitlement (8,630,558) (36,857,898)
28,862,332 50,935,749
28,862,332 50,935,749

Total income tax expense(Before MAT Entitlement Credit) recognised in the

current year relating to continuing operations,
qﬁ"’
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The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit
as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Income tax expense calculated at 29.12% (2019-20 29.12% )

Effect of Difference between Tax rate and MAT Rate

Effect of Expenses/Income Permanently not deductible or claimable for Income tax

Effect of unrecoginised Deferred Taxes in Subsidary

Effect of previously unrecognised and unused tax losses and deductible temporary
differences on deferred
tax assets unconsidered earlier.

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operations) -
before MAT Entitlement credits

The tax rate used for the year ended F.Y. 2020-21 and FY 2019-20 is 29.12%.
Reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 29.12% (for both years)

The MAT rate applied for the FY 2020-21 is 17.47% (effective MAT rate), in and FY
2019-20 the MAT rate was 17.47%(effective tax rate)

Current Year ended

Previous year ended

31/03/2021 31/03/2020
82,410,725 25,970,914
23,998,003 7,562,730

(3,025,611)
(4,023,196) 918,276
39,864,196 )
(6,486,924) (5,455,304)
53,352,079 50,935,749
53,352,079 50,935,749

Pict No, 114,
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30 Segment information

30.1 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
The Directors of the company are directly involved in the operations of the Company, including the subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Board of Directors
has been idenlified as the Chief Operting Decision Maker (CODM),
Information reported to the chief Operaling decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocalion and assassment of segment performance
focuses on the model of healthcare services delivered. The directors of the Company have chosen to organise the Company around differences in
products and services. Accordingly, hospitals, pharmacies, and Nursing Institute have been identified as the roperaling segments.
The Company operates in mainly in India, and the drugs sold in the pharmacies, are regulated under the Drug Control Act, which applies uniformly all
over the Country.
The accounting policies adopled for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies adopfed in Standalone financial statements with the
following additional policies for Segment Reporting:
a. Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.
Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included
under “unallocable expensas”,
b. Inter segment revenue and expenses are eliminated.
The Company has disclosed this Segment Reporting in Standalone Financial Statements as per Ind AS 108

30.2 Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue and results from conlinuing operations by reportable segment.

Seament Revenue Segment Profit

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Health care 1,599,175,336 1,923,302,864 184,393 573 141,441,300
Pharmacy 86,841,639 135,791,595 11,382,270 20,808,386
Nursing Institute 22,996,025 24,485 502 520,620 520,620
Total 1,709,013,900 2,083,579,961 196,296,463 162,770,306
Less: Inter Segment Revenue 8,438,413 8,490,691 8,438,413 8,490,691
Total for continuing operations 1,700,575,487 2,075,089,270 187,858,050 154,279,615
Other income 18,556,664 1,790,519
Cenlral administration costs and (25,034,566) (23,024,588)
directors’ salaries
Finance costs (98,969,423) (109,905,523)
Profit before tax (continuing operations) 82,410,725 23,140,023

The accounling policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Company's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit before tax earned by each segment without allocation of central administration costs and directors' salaries, share of profit of

associales, share of profit of joint ventures, other income, as well as finance costs. This is

maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

30.3 Segment assets and liabilities

Segment Assets

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Health care 2,170,895,704 2,292 680,050
Pharmacy 22,126,402 43,702,003
Nursing Institute 12,830,868 7,787,335

Total Segment Assets
Assets relatingto ...... and ...... operations (now

2,205,852,974

2,344,169,388

discontinued)
Unallocated 117,716,799 220,529 414
Consolidated total assets 2,323,669,773 2,564,698,802

Segment liabilities

Health care 1,236,999,434 1,505,700,608
Pharmacy 19,730,772 23,366,945
Nursing Institute 3,406,100 1,094,502

Total Segment liabilities

Liab relatingto ..., and ...... operations (now discontinued)
Unallocated

Consolidated total liabilities

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments:

+ all assels are allocated to reportable segments other than investments in associates, investments in joint venlures, other

financial assets and current and deferred tax assets, which assets are reported under "Healthcare”,
« all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than borrowings, other financial liabilities,current and deferred tax liabilities which liabilities

are reported under "Healthcare".

30.4 Other segment information

Depreciation and Amortisation

1,260,136,306

1,530,162,054

1,260,136,306

1,630,162,054

investments, loans, other

Addition to Non Current Assets

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Heaith care 123,006,997 130,426,372 30,582,503 255,635,414
Pharmacy 35,593 - - -
Nursing Institute 106,501 463,925 - -
e 123,149,091 130,890,297 30,582,503 255635414
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In addition to the depreciation and amortisation reported above, impairment losses of Rs.Nil were recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment and goodwill, respectively. These impairment lossas were attributable to the following reportable segments.

Impairment losses recognised for the year in respect of property, plant and equipment

Health care Nil
Pharmacy Nil
Nursing Institute Nil

Nil

30.5 Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue from continuing 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
operations from its major products and services,
Health care 1,599,175,336 1,923,302,864
Pharmacy 86,841,639 135,791,595
Nursing Institute 22,996,925 24,485,502
Less: Inter Segment Revenue 8,438413 8,490,691
1,700,575,487 2,075,089,270
Other Income 18,556,664 1,790,519

1,719,132,151 2,076,879,789
———I—’——J—-_—_l____x_l___
e L LT

30.6 Information about major customers

No single customers conlributed 10% or more to the Company’s revenue for both 2020-21 and 2019-20.

31 Earnings per Share
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Basic earnings per share
From conlinuing operations 0.53 0.16
From discontinued operations - -
Total basic earnings per share 0.53 0.16
Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operalions 0.53 0.16
From discontinued operations - -
Total diluted earnings per share 0.53 0.16

31.1 Basic earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows,

Profit for the year allributable to owners of the Company 53,091,230 16,450,125
Dividends paid on convertible non-participaling preference Shares - -
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 53,091,230 16,450,125

Profit for the year from discontinued operations altributable to owners of the Company - -
Others [describe]

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from conlinuing operations 53,091,230 16,450,125
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 100,603,068 100,603,068

31.2 Diluted earnings per share

The earmnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows.

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 53,091,230 16,450,125
Interest on convertible notes (after tax at 30%) - -
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share Profit ' 53,091,230 16,450,125

for the year from discontinued operations attributahle
Others [describe] _ -
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 53,091,230 16,450,125

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted eamings per share reconciles to the weighted average number of equity
shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic eamings per share

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:

- employee opticns

- partly paid equity shares

- converlible notes

- others [describe]

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 100,603,068 100,603,068

32 Employee benefit plans

32.1 Defined contribution plans ' e
The employees of the Company's are members of a stale-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government. is required to /

conlribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the relirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only o ma
respect to the relirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions. Piot No. 1iA,
hal GIDC Estate

ndhinagar-1824 28
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The total expense of Rs.1,43,05,413/- (out of which Rs.99,91,059/- towards pension fund and Rs.43,14,354/- towards PF, has been recognised for
the year in profit or loss (for the year ended March 31, 2020: Rs.1,40,42,633/- out of which Rs.97,47,153/- towards Pension fund contribution and
Rs.42,95,480/- for PF) represents contributions paid / payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

Defined benefit plans

The company conltributes all ascertained liabilities with respect to gratuity to a fund under a Group Gratuity Scheme of LIC of India whose Plan Assels
are managed by LIC of India. The company provides for graluity, a defined benefit retiring plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lumpsum payment to the vested employees at relirement / death / incapacitation / termination of employment based on the respective
employees salary and tenure of employment with the company

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as shown below:

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian
Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference
to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate
bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds: if the return on plan asset
is below this rate, it will creale a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it
has a relalively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and
other debt instruments. Further, the overseas plan has a relatively balanced
investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real estates. Due to the
long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the overseas Fund
considers it appropriale that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should
be invested in equity securities and in real estate to leverage the return

generated by the Fund.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however,
this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt
investments

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by

_ |reference to the best eslimate of the mortality of plan participants both during
and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan's liability

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in
the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the pian assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were
carried out as at March 31, 2021

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows. Valuation as at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Discount rate(s) 6.84% 7.7%%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase
- For next 1 year 0.00% 7.00%
- From the 2nd year 6.00% 7.00%
Altrition Rale
- For services uplo 2 years and below 18.00% 3.00%
- For services 3 years to 4 years 8.00% 3.00%
- For services 5 years and above 5.00% 3.00%
Retirement Age 58 58

Pre-retirement mortality
Average longevity at retirement age for current beneficiaries of the pian (years)*

Males Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2006-08) (2006-08)

Females Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2006-08) (2006-08)

Average longevity at retirement age for current employees (future beneficiaries of the plan) (years)*

Males NA NA
Females NA NA

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality/ others (please describe).

Amounts recognised in Standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of These defined benefit 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
plans are as follows.

Service cost: »

Current service cost 4,342 589 4,947 203
Past service cost and (gain)/loss from settlements - -
Net interest expense (324,897) (186,273)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 4,017,692 4,760,930
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Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net inlerest expense) 193,931.00 390,782.00
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions (164,751.00) (300,947.00)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 907,429 (1,766,517)
Acluarial (gains) / losses arising from experience adjustments (708,159) (1,154,209)
Others [describe] - -
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit assat - &
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income = -
Total 228,450 (2,830,891)

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee benefils expense' line item in the Standalone

statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurernent of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the Standalone balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
its defined benefit plans is as follows:
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (34,333,509) (30,872,262)
Fair value of pian assels 40,188,292 35,605,576
Funded status 5,854,693 4,733,314
Restriclions on asset recognised - -
Others [describe] - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 5,854,693 4,733,314
Change in Defined Benefit Obligation 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening defined benefit obligation 30,872,262 30,196,095
Current service cost 4,342 589 4,947,203
Interest cost 2,110,524 2,352,247
Remeasurement (gains)/losses: - -
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumplions (164,751) (300,947)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumplions 907,429 (1,766,517)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments (708,159) (1,154,209)
Others [describe] - -
Past service cost, including losses/(gains) on curtaiiments - -
Liabilities extinguished on settlements - -
Liabilities assumed in a business combination - -
Exchange differences on foreign plans - -
Benefits paid (3,026,295) (3,401,610)
Others [describe] - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 34,333,599 30,872,262
Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening fair value of plan assets 35,605,576 32,586,905
Interest income 2,435,421 2,538,520
Remeasurement gain (loss): -
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (193,931) (390,782)
Others [describe] - -
Contributions from the employer 5,367,521 4,272,543
Contributions from plan participants -
Assets distributed on settlements - -
Assels acquired in a business combination - -
Exchange differences on foreign plans - *
Benefits paid (3,026,205) (3,401,610)
Other [describe] .
Closing fair value of plan assets 40,188,292 35,605,576
The fair value of the plan assets for the India and overseas plan at the end of the reporting period for each calegory, are as follows
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
- Insurance Fund 40,188,292 35,605,576
Total 40,188,292 35,605,576
Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
1st Following Year 2,293,362 1,932,057
2nd Following Year 3,107,143 1,805,300
3rd Following Year . 2,173,920 2,745,481
4th Following Year 2,693,228 1,809,461
5th Following Year 3,007,286 2,289,763
Sum of 6 10 10 Years gyt 12,879,821 11,682,288
Sum of Years 11 and above 39,232,869 44,356,243
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Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Employer

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
1st Following Year 4,569 1,096
2nd Following Year 16,688 1,100
3rd Following Year 25,750 3,320
4th Following Year 180,572 16,503
5th Following Year 96,362 67,134
Sum of 6 to 10 Years 409,837 290,996
Sum of Years 11 and above 704,464 574473

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensilivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while hoiding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Change in assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
31-03-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Discount rate 100 basis poinls 100 basis points (2,683,057) (2,632,514) 3,104,638 3,072,050
Salary growth rate 100 basis points 100 basis points 3,000,304 3,084,183 (2,719,956)  (2,347,032)
Employee Turnover 100 basis points 100 basis points 16,114 141,032 (27,163) (165,647)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the definedbenefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumplions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenling the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that appiied in calculaling the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the balance sheet. ’

There was no change in the methods and assumplions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Each year an Asset-Liability-Matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment policies are analysed in terms of risk-
and-relurn profiles. Investment and conlribution policies are integrated within this study. Main strategic choices that are formulated in the actuarial
and technical policy document of the Fund are:

* Asset mix based on 25% equity instruments, 50% debt instruments and 25% investment properties;

+ Inlerest rale sensitivity caused by the duration of the defined benefit obligation should be reduced by 30% by the use of debt instruments in
combination with interest rale swaps;

+ Mainlaining an equity buffer that gives a 97.5% assurance that assets are sufficient within the next 12 months.

There has been no change in the process used by the Company to manage its risks from prior periods.

The Company has employee benefit schemes by way of Privilege & Sick Leave encashment which are unfunded. These are actuarily valued every
year and the liability thereof for Sick leave is INR 51,85,988/- and that for Privilege Leave is INR 1,20,37,419/-, The assumptions are the same as
considered in Group Gratuity benefit (dislosed above).

33 Financial instruments
33.1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that enlities in the Company will be able to continue as going concems while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in borrowing notes) offset by cash and bank balances and total
equity of the Company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company's risk management commiltee reviews the capilal structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
committee considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Company is initaiting efforts to reduce the gearing
ratio.

Gearing ratio ' As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.

Debt (i) 591,685,362 777,019,697

Cash and bank balances (including cash and bank balances in a (296,728,766) (142,526,293)
disposal Company held for sale)

Net Debt 294,956,596 634,493,404

Total Equity 1,063,433 .468 1,034,536,748

Net debt to equity ratio 0.28 0.61

(i) Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings (exciuding derivalive, financial guarantee contracts and contingent consideration), as
described in nofes.

33.2 Categories of financial instruments

As at As at
Financial assets . 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(a) Mandatorily meastured:

(i) Equity investments

(ii) Derivalive instruments other than designated hedge accounting
relationships
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(b) Designated as at FVTPL Measured at amortised cost - &
(i) Mutual Fund investments

Measured at amortised cost

(a) Cash and bank balances (including cash and bank balances in a 296,728,766 142,526,293
disposal Company held for sale)
(b) Other financial assets at amortised cost (including trade 403,675,994 565,949 514

receivables in a disposal Company held for sale)

Measured at FVTOCI

(a) Debt instrumenls = -
(b) Investments in equity instruments designated upon initial - -
recognition

Financial liabilities

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(a) Held for trading - -

(b) Designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition - -

(c) Derivative instruments other than in designated hedge

accounling relationships

Measured at amortised cost (including trade payables balance in a - -
disposal Company held for sale)

Borrowings 504,664,400 633,648,713
Trade Payables and olhers 198,635,123 279,280,869

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL
Carrying amount of financial assets designated as at FVTPL - -
Cumulative changes in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk - -

Changes in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk recognised - -
during the year

33.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets,
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree
and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Corporate Treasury function reports quarterly to the Company's senior management and board of directors , that monitors risks and policies
impiemented to miligate risk exposures.

33.4 Market risk

The Company's activilies expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The company's
finance team manages these risk by effective financial management.

33.5 Foreign currency risk management
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange
rale exposures are managed within approved policy parameters

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are

as follows.
Assets as at
31-03-21 31-03-20
Trade Receivables (In USD) 442 089 434 246
Trade Receivabies (In INR) 32,360,921 29,398,166

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposad to currency dollars.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity
where the Rs. strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the Rs. against the relevant currency, there would be a
comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
+10% -10% +10% -10%
Impact on Profit or Loss for the year 3,236,002 (3,236,092) 3,272,810 (3,272,810)
Impact on Equity for the year 3,236,002 (3,236,092) 3,272,810 (3,272,810)
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33.6 Interest rate risk management

337

The Company is exposed to interest rale risk because entilies in the Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is
managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriale mix between fixed and floaling rate borrowings, and by the use of interest rate swap
contracts and forward interest rate contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appelite,
ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The Company's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note.,

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been delermined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's:

+ profit for the year ended March 31, 2020 would decrease/ increase by INR 11.18 Million (for the year ended March 31, 2020 would decrease/
increase by INR 3.15 Million). This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings; and

+ other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021 would not have been impacted (for the year ended March 31, 2020: would not have
been impacted)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its conlractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Majority of the
Company's transactions are earned in cash or cash equivalents. The trade receivables comprise mainly of receivables from Insurance Companies,
Corporate customers and Government Undertakings. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain minimum reserve levels and the Corporate
Customers are enterprises with high credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables is considered
low.Before accepling any new credit customer, the Company uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed anually. The outstanding with the debtors is reviewed
periodically.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ralings assigned by
inlernational credit-rating agencies.

34 Liquidity risk management

34,

-

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 34below sels out details of additional undrawn
facilities that the Company has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The foliowing tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financialliabilities with agreed repayment periods. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be
required to pay. The tables include both inlerest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars Weighted 3 months to 1 year 1 Year to 5 years > 5 years
average effective
interest rate( %)

As at 31st March, 2021
Non-interest bearing

Variable interest rate instruments * 7.65% 83,840,737 87,736,435 29,477,894
83,840,737 87,736,435 29,477,804
As at 31st March, 2020
Non-interest bearing = w =
Variable interest rate instruments * 9.50%* 143,370,983 185,524,828 207,443,063
143,370,983 185,524,828 207,443,063

* These are not cumulative

** Exisling Average interest rale

The carrying amounts of the above are as follows: As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Non-interest bearing
Variable interest rate instruments 406,808,254 519,022,120
Fixed interest rate instruments

406,808,254 519,022,120

34.2 Financing facilities
As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Secured bank overdrafl facility; ¢ P‘.& i ila
- amount used Bhal GIOC Estals, || 23,874,696 130,339,962

- amount unused Gandhinagar 382022 | 5 | 126,125,304 99,660,038
/ 150,000,000 230,000,000
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34.3 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
The company considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the Standalone financial stalements

35

approximale their fair values.

Particulars

As at 31 March, 2021

As at 31 March, 2020

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost:
- loans to related parties - = - -
- trade receivables 153,721,588 153,721,588 280,670,030 280,670,030
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 296,728,766 296,728,766 142,526,293 142,526,293
- Other Financial Assets 230,811,261 230,811,261 267,085,244 267,085,244
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
- convertible notes (including interest accrued) - - - -
- perpelual notes - = - -
- bank loans 346,842,214 346,842,214 486,712,698 486,712,698
- Cummulative Redeemable Preference Shares 157,822,186 157,822,186 146,936,015 146,936,015
- loans from related parties - - - -
- Other Financial Liabilities 89,979,123 89,979,123 148,290,965 148,290,965
- trade payables 108,656,000 108,656,000 130,989,904 130,989,904

Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Company and other related parties are disclosed below.

35.1 List of Related Parties Relationship
Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limiled Holding Company
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd Entities having significant influence
Green Channel Travels Services Private Limlied Entities having significant influence
IRM Enterprises Private Limited Entities having significant influence
Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited Entities having significant influence
Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited Entities having significant influence
Faber Sindoori Management Services Private Limited Entities having significant influence
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Limited Entities having significant influence
Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited Entities having significant influence
MedSmart Logistics Private Limited Entities having significant influence
Dhruvi Pharma Private Limited Entities having significant influence
Apollo Pharmacy Limited Entities having significant influence
Apollo Rajshree Hospital Pvt. Ltd. Entities having significant influence
Apollo Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd Joint Venture
Apollo CVHF Limiled Subsidiary
List of Key managerial personnel :
(i) Mr. Deepak Tharanee- Chief Financial Officer
(ii) Mr. Nikunj Vyas - Company secretary
35.2 Trading transactions
Particulars during the year, Company enlities entered into the following trading fransactions with related parties that are not members of the Company:
Purchass Savioa Rendsrad (Income from | Service Avalled (descrpion to be |Reimbursement of Exps incured|  Reimbursement of Exps Othor Income Quistznding Quistanding Recstvable
paticuls operation ot given)* on behalf of RPT Incured by RPT on our behalf | (Rent, Intarast, Others efc.,) Payable
et M et AMaR0) M a0 Sl e Ml SMa] Sl MMaddl e ] e StMaD)
Apol Hosples Enlespeise Limied X0 5548 o (e 1€ Xl asis B 1260)  WSES|  BARSH|  JuEN
Apol Phamacy Linited Wiz . L] -
Cails Prasmeuficas Limied SHARRZ| 1181410 T T O - . M| ama| s 1939
(e Channel Travels Savices P Lid . Kkl T 8458 741 - . - & a 50 34 . -
R Enferprises Prvae Linded o - . - wos, @Ml 1 . Sl owm s
Slemcyle ndia Therapelcs P Ld : unE| 1R SR - | e s
Apolo S el Linited R B amm 757 128 . : a4 . .
Fae Sinonsi Masgemerd Senvies P Lid LR 952750 1506 . . 783000 . -
Indregrasiha Medical Carporstion Lirited . - - bz L . bl I b
Ageo Healh and Lfslye Liited 56 &0 . we <) Bl R
Apoo Arish Oresogy Sevices Pt Lig nuesn BT 3188 246
Apolo CVHF Liiad 18343 b b . 1M
VeddSimart Logidics Privals Limted “arm| o B . TS| 1620 .
Dhvuvi P Pivate Linited gl s wEEl| s -
Aok e gl PY. L, 4 e . 701
| ; |

Service Availed from RPT;

- Booking of Air lickels from Green Channel Travels Services Frivate Limiled
- Food & Beverage services from IRM Enterprises Private Limited
- F&B-Manpower services from Apollo Sindoon Hotels Limited

- Biomedical-Manpower services fiom Faber Sindoon Management Services Privale Limtied

- Pharmacy Profit Sharing to Apollo Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Ltd
- Outsource Lab Investigalion to StemCyte india Therapeulics Private Limited
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36 Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Employee Benefits 6,754,623 11,652,194
6,754,623 11,652,194

The remuneration of directors and key executives is delermined by the remuneralion commitiee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

37 Commitments

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 178,400 15,204,844
The Company's share of the capital commilments made jointly with other joint venturers relating to its joint venture, is as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Commitments to conlribute funds for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 178,400 15,204,844

Commitments to provide loans -

Commilments to acquire other venturer's ownership interest when a particular event occurs or does not

occur in the future (please specify what the particular event is) - -
Others (please specify) - -

38 Contingent liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 62,883,000 63,853,000
(b) Guarantees excluding financial guaraniees 3,399,000 1,750,000

(d) Other money for which the company is conlingently liable
Customs Duty = s
Service Tax 25,761,226 17,616,820

Value Added Tax - "
Income Tax - -
EPCG - =

(e) Other money for which the company is contingently liable
- Conlingent liabilities incurred by the Company arising from its
interests in joint ventures & subsidiaries (Lelter of Comfort to
YES Bank for Credit Facilities of Apollo-Amrish Oncology
Services Pvt. Ltd & Apollo CVHF Limited)
(f) The Company has disputed demands raised by Torrent Power
that were never billed earlier and are beyond the period of two years 5,572,931 -
stipulated in the Electricity Act.

37,500,000 42,500,000

(i) A number of conlingent liabilities have arisen as a result of the Company's interest in its joint venture. The amount disclosed represents the aggregate
amount of such contingent liabilities for which the Company as an investor is liable. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required is dependent
on the future operalions of the joint venture being more or less favourable than currently expected. The Company is not contingently liable for the
liabilities of other venturers in its joint venture.

(ii) The amount disclosed represents the Company’s share of contingent liabilities of associales. The extent to which an outflow of funds will be required
is dependent on the future operations of the associates being more or less favourable than currently expected.

(i) The guarantees included above excludes financial guarantees given to banks by the Company to secure the financing facilities obtained by the
subsidiaries and other Company companies.

39 Events after the reporting period

There are no reportable events occuring after the balance sheet date.

40 Approval of financial statements

The financial slalements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 18th June, 2021

41 Earnings in Foreign Currency

st FEAST
GandhinagarST |

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

(1) Earnings in Foreign Currency

Income from Hospital Services 27,714,415 23,825,539
(2) Expenditure in Foreign Currency ‘

Travelling & Markeling Expenses 269,461 8,479,477

Professional charges (Pre & followup care fees) 735,011 2,821,276
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